
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REOION4 
SA.\4: }j1.-T;'>l~ 

ATLANTA i-"EDERAL CENTER 
61 f<ORSYTH :,lREET 

ATlANTA GEORGIA 303U3--8%O 

APR 06 2011. 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESIIi;!! 


Carolyn M. Brown~ Esq. 
Greenebaum Doll & McDonald PLLC 
300 West Vine Street, Suite I JOO 
lexington, Kentucl<y 40507 

RE: World Color (USA) LtC 
Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) 
Docket No. RCRA·04·2011-4002(b) 

Dear Ms. Brown: 

Enclosed please fwd a copy of the executed CAFO as filed with the Regional 
Hearing Clerk (RHC) in the above'referenced matter, The CAFO i. effective on the date 
it is filed with the RHC, and the penalty due date is calculated from the effective date. 

Also enclosed, please find a copy of a document entitled ~otjce of Securities and 
Exchange Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings," 
This document puts World Color (USA) LLC on notioe of its potential duty to disclose to 
the Securities Exchange Commission any envirorunental actions taken by the United 
Stales Environmental Protection Agency. 

Ifyou have any questions, please reel free to contact me at (404) 562·9705. 

Sincerely, 

~/t,~,Mr 
Alfred R. Politzer 
Assistant Regional CQunsel 
Office ofEnvimnmental Accountability 

Enclosures 

!00!!mef Address (lJRi..) • http;JlwWw.cpa.gov 

RecyelMSlRecv~ • P1iffied WIIh ~ 011 Sarod Ink$ on ~od Paper (Minimum lO% Pu$toonwmerj 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENClf ". 
REGlON4 ~ 

: 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) DOCKET NO,: RCRA-04-201I>4oo2UlJ 
r" -, .

) 
) 

WORLD COLOR (USA) LLC ) 
300 BROWN ROAD ) PROCEEDING UNDER SECTION " 
FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY 42134 ) 3008(0) OF THE RF,SOURCE 

) CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY 
) ACT, 42 U's,C. § 6928(0) 

EPA lD NO.: KYD094 203 213 ) 

) 


RESPONDENT ) 


CONSENT AGREEMENT 

I. NATURE OF THE AL'TION 

1. 	 This is a civil administrative enforcement action. ordering compliance with the 
requirements of Subtitle C of the Resource Conservation and Rttovery Act (RCRA), 
42 United States Code (U,S.c.) §§ 6921. ef seq" and Chapter 224 of the Kentucky 
Revised Statutes (KY, REV. STAT. ANN,), Subchapter 46. This action is seeking 
injunctive relief and civil penalties pursuant to Section 3008(a} of RCRA, 42 U.S.c, 
§ 6928(n), for violation, of RCRA and the corresponding regulations at Title 40 of the 
Code of Federnl Regulations (C.P.R,), Parts 260 - 268; and Ky, REv, STAT, ANN, 
§§ 226.40-100, et. seq., and the corresponding regulations at Title 401 of the Kentucky 
AdnthliSlrative Regulations (Ky, ADMIN, REG.) Chapters 30-40, 

2. 	 The COfl~olidated Rules 0/Practice Governing the Administrative ~4sse$sml!nt ofCivil 
Penalties and the RevocationITerminan'on or Suspension ofPermits. 40 C,F.R. Part 22. 
provide that where the parties agree to ~ttlemcnl before the flling of a complaint, a 
proceeding may be Simultaneously commenced and concluded by the issuance of a 
Consent Ag""-'lllent and Final Order (CAFO), 40 C.F.R §§ 22.13(h) and 22.18(b)(2), 

3. 	 The partie~ have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 40 C.P.R. § 22.18 
and desire to 1)etUe this aelion. Accordingly. before any rcstimooy has been taken upon 
the pJeadin~ and without any admission of violation or adjudication of any issue of fact 
or law and in accordance with 40 C.PK § 22, 13(bl, the partie, have agreed to the 
execution of this CAFO. and Respondent agrees to comply with the tenns -of this CAFO. 

IL THE PARTIES 

4, 	 Complainant is the Chief. RCRA and OPA Enforcement and Compliance Bl1ll1ch, RCRA 
Division, Region 4. United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 



5. 	 Respondent is World Color (USA) LLC, incorporated under the laws of the State of 
Delaware, doing business in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and located at :l00 Brown 
Road, Franklin, Kentucky 42134. 

III. PRELIMINARY StATEMENTS 

6. 	 Pursuant to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b), Kentucky has received final 
authorization to carry out a haz.ardous wws-te program in lieu of the federal program. The 
requirements of the authorized state program are found in Ky. REv. STAT. ANN. 

§ 226.40-100.et. seq., and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 30:005. <I. seq. 


7. 	 Pursuant to Section 3006(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(g), the requirements established 
by the Hazardous and Solid Wast. Amendments of 1984 (HSWA), Pub. L. 98·616, are 
immediately effective in all states upon their federal effective date regardless of the 
state's authorization status, and are implemented by EPA until the state is granted final 
authorization with respect to those requirements. Kentucky has received final 
authorization for its HSWA program relevant herein except for 40 C.ER. Part 265 
Subparts BB and CC. 

8. 	 Although EPA has granted Kentucky the authority to enforce its own hazardous waste 
program, EPA retains jurisdiction and authority to initiate an independent e-nforcement 
action. pursuant to Section 3008(.) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a). to .ddres, violations 
of the Kentucky program and to enforce those proVisions of HSWA for which a state is 
not authorized. EPA exercises !his authority in the manner set forth in the Memorandum 
of Agreement between EPA and Kentucky. 

9. 	 Pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(.)(2), Complainanl gave 
written notice of this action to Kentucky before the issuance of this CAFO. 

10. Section 3002(a) of RCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 6922(a), and Ky. REv. STAT. ANN. § 226.40-100. 
et. St'q.• require the promulgation of );tandards applicable to generators of hazardous 
waste. The lmplementing regulations for these standards are found in 40 c.P.R. Part 262 
and 401 Ky. ADMIN. Re.G. Chapter 32. 

II. Section 3004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6924, and Ky. REV. STAT. AA'N, § 226.40,100, e/. 
seq.. require the promulgalion of standards applicable to owners and operators of 
hazardous waste treatment, storage, and dispo.llal facilities, The implementing regulations 
for these standard., are f01l1ld at 40 C.P.R. Part 264 and 401 Ky, ADMIN. REG. Chapter 34. 

12. Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6925, and Ky. REv. STAT. ANN, § 226.40·100, et. 
seq., set forth the requirement that a facility treating, storing., or disposing of hazardous 
waste must have a permit or interim status. The implementing regulations for !his 
requirement are found at 40 C.P.R. Pans 264,265, and 270, and 

401 Ky, ADMIN, REG. Chapters 34. 35, and 38. 
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13. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 26L2 and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 31:010 Section 2, a "solid 
waste" is any di~arded maledal that is not otherwise excluded by regulation. 

14. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 261.3 and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 31:010 Section 3, a solid waste 
is a "hazardous wal)te" if it is not excluded from regulation as a hazardous waste under 
40 C.F.R. § 261.4(1)) and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 31:010 Section 4, and it meets any of the 
criteria specitled in 40 C.ER. § 261.3(a)(2). 

15. Pursuant ro 40 C.ER. § 261.30 and 401 KY. ADMiN. REG. 32:005 Se<.1ion I, a solid wa:ste 
is a hazardous waste if it is listed in 40 C.F.R. Part 261, Subpart D, and not otherwise 
excluded by 40 C.F.R. §§ 260.2() and 260.22. 

16. Pursuant to 40 C.ER § 260.10 and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 31:005 Section I, a "generator" 
is dermed as any person, by site, whose act or process produces hazardous waste 
identified or listed in 40 C.F.R. Part 261 and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 31:010 Section 3, or 
whose act flrst causes a hazardous waste to become subject to regulation. 

17. Pursuant ro 40 C.F.R. § 260. \0 and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 35:005 Section I, • "tank 
system" LIO defined as a hazardom. waste storage or treatment tank and its associated 
equipment and containment system. 

18. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a} and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 32:030 Section 5 .• 
generator may accumulate hazardous waste on site for 90 days or less without a permit or 
without having interim status provided that the generator complies, with the management 
requirements listed in 40 C.f.R. § 262.34(a)( 1}·(4) (hereinafter referred to as !he 
"40 C.F.R. § 262.34(0) penni! exemption"). 

19. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.)(1)(;;), a condition of !he 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a) pennit 
exemption requires a generaror to comply wi!h 40 C.F.R § 265.1 050(b) (requiring the 
operator of equipment lhat CQ11tact.~ hazardous waste with an organic concentration of at 
least 10% to comply wi!h the 40 C.F.R Part 265 Subpart BB air emission standards). 

20. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 262.34(.)(I)(ii). a condition of the 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a) permit 
exemption requires a generator to comply with 40 C.F.R. § 265.1085(1)) (requiring the 
operator of a tank that manages hazardous waste to determine whether Tank Level 1 or 
Tnnk Level 2 controls are applicable to the tank system), 

21. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.)(4) and 401 Ky. ADML'f. REG. 32:030 Section 5, a 
condition of the 40 c,F.R. § 262,34(a) perolit exemption requires a generator to comply 
with 40 C.f.R. § 265.34 and 401 KY. ADMIN. REG. 35:030 Section 5 (requiring personnel 
handling hazardous waste to have immediate access to an internal alarm or emergency 
communications device). 

22. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(c)(I)(i) and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 32:030 Section 5. a 
generator may accumulate as much as 55 gallons of hazardous waste or one quart of 
acutely hazardous waste in (."Oittainers at or near aoy point of generation where wastes 
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initially accumulate, without il pennit or interim status, provided that he comply with 
40 C.F.R. § 265.173(a) and 401 Ky, ADMIN. REG. 35:180 Section 4 (requiring a container 
hQlding hazardous waste to be closed except when necessary to add or remove waste). 

IV, EPA AI.LEGATIONS AND DETERML'IATIONS 

23, Respondent is a "person" a< dcfmed in 40 C.F.R, § 260,10 and 
401 Ky. ADMIN, REG. 31:005 Section L 

24. Respondent is the ....o\vncr" and "operator" of il "facility," as those terms are dcfmoo in 
4!J C.F.R. § 260.10 nnd 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG, 31:005 Section I. 

25. Respondent is a publication rotogravure printer that uses toluene based inks to produce 
newspaper inserts, catalogues, and flyers. As a result ofits production processes, 
Respondent gt.'l1erates a spent liquid solvent waste stream (volatile organic hazardous 
waste) that hao;; an organic concentration greater than 100/0, 

26. The spent liquid solvent waste that Respondent generates is a "solid waste" as defined in 
40 C.FR § 26l.2 and 401 Ky, AOMIN. REG, 31:005 Section L 

27. l'urlluant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 261.20 and 261.30, and 401 Ky, AOML"<, REG. 31;030 Section 5 
and 32:005 Section 1, the spent liquid solvent waste stream is characteristically 
hazardous for ignitability (DOOl) and i, a listed hazardous waste (FooS). 

28. Respondent generates hazardous waste as defined in 40 CF,R, § 261.3 and 
401 Ky. ADMIN, REG, 31:010 Seciion 3. 

29. 'I11C Kentucky Department of Environrnental Protection (KDEP) has a'isigned 
Respondent EPA ID number KYD ()94 203 213. 

30. On August 12, 2009, EPA and KDEP conducted a RCRA Compliance Evaluation 
Inspection (CEl) ofResponden!', iilCility, 

31, At the time ofibe inspection, Respondent managed tile spent liquid solvent waste 
generated on·site in a tank system. 

32. Respondent's tank system consIsted of: 

a, 	 one inside 4,000 gallon above-ground hazardous waste storage tank and 
h. 	 piping to transfer the spent liquid solvent waste to the 4,000 gallon hazardous 

waste storage tanle 

33. At filC time of the eEL, Rcspoudent had failed to comply with the 40 C,F,R. Part 265 
Subpart BB air etnission standards tor equipment leaks. 
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34. EPA there!orc alleges ,h., Respondent has violated Section 3005 ofRCRA, 
42 U,s,c. § 6925, for storing hazardous waste without a permit or interim status, because 
Respondent fujled to meet the 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(aXl )(ii) condition of the 40 C.F.R. 
§ 262.34(a)pennit exemption by not complying with 40 C.F.R § 265.1050(b). 

35. At the time ofthe eEl, Respondent had failed to determine whether Tank Level! or 
Tank Levet 2 controls were applicable to the 4,000 gallon hazardous wa.~te storage tank, 

36. EPA therefore alieges 'hat Respondent has viola1<d Section 3005 ofRCRA, 
42 U.S.C, § 6925. for storing hazardous wa..<;te without a pennit or interim statu...., because 
Respondent failed to meet the 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.)(I)(li) condition of the 40 C.F.R. 
§ 262.34(.) pennit exemption by not complying with 40 C.P.R. § 265.1 085(b). 

37, At the timcofthe eEl. Respondent had failed to have immediate access to an internal 
alarm or emergency communications device at the less-than-90-day hazardous waste 
storage area. 

38. EPA therefore alleges that Respondent has violated Section 3005 ofRCRA, 
42 U.s.c. § 6925, and Ky. REV. STAT. ANN. § 226.46-012, cl. seq., fur ,toring hazardous 
Wil-'Ite without a permit or interim status, because Respondent failed to meet the 
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4) ."'! 401 Ky. ADMIN. RJ.G. 32:030 Section 5 condition of the 
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(.) pennit exemption by not complying with 40 C.FR § 265.34 and 
401 Ky. ADMIN. R"G. 35:030 Section 5. 

39. At the time of the GEl, Respondent had failed to close hazardous waste satellite 
accumulation containers. 

40. EPA therefore alleges that Respondent has violated Section 3005 ofRCRA, 
42 U.S.C. § 6925, and Ky. REv. STAT. A,,,,,. § 226.46-012, cl. seq., fur storing hazardoos 
waste without a permit or interim status. because Respondent failed to meet the 
40 C.P.R. § 262.34(c)(1 )(i) and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 32:030 Section 5 condition of the 
40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a) permit exemption by not complying with 40 C.F.R § 265.173(0) 
and 401 Ky. ADMIN. REG. 35:180 S""tion 4. 

V. TERMS OF AGRE~:J\u;.NT 

Based on the foregoing paragraphs, the parties agree to the following: 

41. Within thirty (30) calcndar daY' of receipt of the executad copy of this CAFO, 
Respondent shall submit to EPA and KDEP a certification signed by a duly authorized 
representative stating that the Facitity is in compliance with ReRA. This certification 
shall be as follows: 

~l certIfy under penalty oflaw, to the best afmy knowledge and belief, that the facility 
addressed in tItis CAFO is in fuH compliance with RCRA. All work was done undcrmy 
direction or superviSIOn according to a system designt:d to assure that qualified personnel 
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implemented and completed the required tasks. This certification 1S based on my inquiry 
of the person(s) who perfonned the tasks, or those persons directly responsible for the 
person(s) who performed the tasks, I am aware that there are significant penalties for 
submitting false information. including the possibility of fine and impriMmnent for 
knowing violations," 

42. The certifications required to be submitted under this CAFO shall be mailed to: 

Kris Uppert 

RCRA Division - 10th Floor 

US EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 

Atlanta. G<;orgi. 30303 


And to: 

Anthony Hatton 
Division of Waste Management 
Kentucky Department of Environmental Protection 
300 Fair Oaks Lane 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

43. For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits tbe jurisdictional allegations set out in 
the above paragraphs pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928. 

44. Respondent neither admits nor denies the above fa(..iuai allegations and determinatiQm. 

45. Respondent waives any right to cuntest the allegations and Its right to appeal the 
proposcd Final Order accumpanying the Consent Agreement. 

46. Respondent waives its right to challenge the validity of this CAFO and the settiement of 
the matters addressed in this CAPO based on the Paperwork Reducti(Hl Act. 

47. Respondent waives any right pursuant l040 C.P.R. § 22.8 to he present during any 
discussions with. or to be served with and reply to. any memorandum or communication 
addressed to EPA officials where the purpose of such discussion. memor.mdum, or 
communication is to persuade such official to accl.'Pl and issue this CAFO. 

48. The parties agree ihat the settlement of this matter is in the puhlic interest and that this 
CAFO is oom>istent with the applicable requirements of RCRA. The parties agree that 
compliance with dIe terms of this CAFO shall resolve all of Respondent's liability for 
civil penalties for the violations and facts alleged and stipulated to in this CAFO, 

49. Each party will pay its own cosu) and attorney's fees. 
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VI. PAXMENTOFCIVILPE....ALTY 


50. Respondent consents to the payment of a civil penalty in the amount of SEVENTY· TWO 
THOUSAND EIGIIT HUNDRED AND NINETEEN DOLLARS ($72.8 t9) within thirty 
(30) calendar day. of the effective date of thi' CAFO. 

51. Payment shall be made by cashier's check. certified check, by electronic funds transfer 
(EFT). or by Automated Clearhouse (ACH) (also known as REX or remittance express). 
If paying by check, the check shall be payable to: Treasurer. United Stat.. of 
America, and the docket number and facility name shall be referenced 011 the face of the 
check. If Respondent utilizes the US Postal Service, the pa)ment ,hall he addressed to: 

United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finan4.'e Center 
P.O. Box 979077 

Sl Louis. Missouri 63197·9000 


If Respondent utilizes non-US Postal express mail delivery, the payment shall be sent to: 

United States Bank 
Govenunent l.ockbox 979077 
United States Envirorunental Protection Agency 
Fines and Pellalties 
1005 Convention Plaza 
SL·M(}'C2·GL 
St, Louis. Missouri 63101 
(314)418·1028 

If paying by EFT, the Re<pondent shall transfer the payment to: 

Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
ABA: 021030004 
Account Number: 68010727 
SWlFT address: FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New Yorlc, New York 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedw1re message should read: 
"D 68010727 Enviromnentai Protection Agency" 

If paying by AeR, the Respondent shall remit payment to: 

PNCB.nk 
ABA: 051036706 
Aceount Number: 310006 
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 ..-checking 
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United States Environmental Protection Agency 
808 17'" Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20074 
COItlact: Jesse White, (301) 887-6548 

52. Respondent shall submit a copy of the payment to Ute fuUowing addressees: 

Patricia Bullock, Regional Hearing Clerk 
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303·8909 

And to: 

Kris Lippert 
RCM and OPA Enforeement and Compliance Branch 
RCRA Division 
United States. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Gc'Orgia 30303 

53. If Respondent fails to remit the civil penalty as agreed to herein,. EPA ill required to 
al)sess interest nod penalties on debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover Um 
costs of processing and handling the delinquent claim. Interest, at the statutory judgment 
rate provided for in 31 U.s.C. § 3717. will begin to accrue on the civil penalty if not paid 
within 30 calendar days after the effective date of this Consent Agreement Pursuant to 
31 U.s.C. § 3717, Respondent must pay the following amounts on any amount overdue: 

a. 	 Intere,~t. Any ltnpaid ponion of a civil penalty or stipulated pe-naity must 
hear interest at the nne est8bli~hed by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant 
to 31 U.S.c, § 37l7(a)(I). Interest will therefore begin to accrue on a civil 
penalty or stipulated penalty if it is not paid hy the last date required. Interest 
will be assessed at the rate of the Un-ired States Treasury tax and loan rate. 

b. 	 Monthly Handling Chme. Respondent must pay a late payment handling 
charge of fIfteen dollars ($15.00) on any 1.te payment, with an additional 
charge of fifteen dollars ($15.00) for each subsequent thirty (30) calendar· 
day period over which an unpaid balance remains. 

c. 	 Non·~ent Pet181ty. On any portion of a civil penalty or a :stipulated 
penalty more than ninety (90) calendar days pest due, Respondent must pay a 
non-payment penalty of :six percent (6%) per annum, which will accrue from ­
the date the penalty payment became due and is not paid. This non-payment 
is in arldition to charges which may accrue under suhparagraphs (a) and (0). 

54. Penal tie, paid pursuant to thi' CAFO are not tax deductible under 26 U.S.C. § 162(1). 
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VII. PARTIES ROUND 


55. This CAFO shall be hinding on Respondent and its success-on:;, and a5f>lgns, Respondent 
shall C3lL;;e its officers. directors. employees. agents, and all persons. including 
independent contractors, contractors. and consultants acting under Of for Respondent,. to 
comply with the provisions hereof in connection with any activity subject to this CAFO. 

56. No change in ownership. partnership, corporate or legal status relating to the facility will 
in any way alter RespondL'Ut's obligations and responsibilities under this CAPO. 

57, TIle undersigned represent1ltive of Respondent hereby certifies that f>he or he is fully 
authorized to enter into this CAFO and to execute and legally bind Respondent to it. 

VIIL RFlif:RV ATION OF RIGHTS 

58. Notwithstanding allY other provision of this CAFO, an enforcement action may be 
brought pun;uant to Section 7003 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6973, or other statutory 
authority. should the EPA fmd that the handling. storage. treatmcnt, transportation, or 
disposal of solid waste or hazardous waste at Ret>pondcnt's facility may present an 
imminent and ~ubstantial endangerment to human health or the environment. 

59. Complainant w;erves the right to take enforcement action again ..t Rcsporldent for any 
future violations ofRCRA and the implementing regulations and to enforce the terms and 
conditions: Qfthis CAFO, 

60, E~cept as expressly provided herein, nothing in this CAFO CQn~titutes a release from any 
civil or criminal claim. cause of action. Of demand in law or equity for any liability 
Re-;pondcnt may have arising out of. or relating to, the £torage, transportation, reJease, or 
disposal of hazardous constituents. hazardous substance:;, hazardous wastes, poUutants, 
or contaminants found at, laken to, or taken from Respondent's facility. 

61. This CAPO may be amended only by written agreement bctweenEPA and Respundent. 

IX. OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 

62. AU actions required to be taken pursuant to this CAPO shaU be undertaken in accordance 
with the requirements of all applicable local. state. and Federal laws and regulations. 

X, SERViCE OF DOCUMENTS 

63. A copy of any documents that Respondent files in this action shall be sent to the 
following attorney who represents EPA in this matter: 

Alfred PoHtzcr 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
United States Environmental Protection Agency. Region 4 
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61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

64. A copy of any documents that Complainant files in this action shall be :sent to the 
following attorney who repre~nts Respondent in this matter: 

Carolyn M. Brown, Esq. 
Greenebaum Doll & McDonald PLLC 
300 West Vine Street, Sui.e 1100 
Lexington, Kentucky 40507 

XI. SEVERABILITY 

65, It is the intent of the parties that the provisions of this CAFO are severable. If any 
provision or 8uthorily of this CAPO or the application of this CAPO to any party or 
drctumstances is held by any judicial or administrative authority to be invalid or 
unenforceable, the application of such provisions to other parties or circumstances and 
the remainder of the CAPO shall remain in force and shalloot be affected thereby. 

XII. EFFECTIVE DAIE 

66. The effective date of this CAFO is the date it is filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk.. 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

World Color (USA) 
" " 

c 

//'-""J /) 

By: ----r--7¢'-,,---Jr'<------ Dated:
I 

Print Title: y.(<. .f'ccs..,ili;",l ~I 

3 -:2.'1-11'--___ 

CW/J'i;.{) I 
u~". En.ir.omental Protection Agency 

Dared:By~2~

L Lamberth 

Acting Chief 

RCRA and OPA Enforcement nod Compliance Branch 

ReRA Division 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PRO'fEC-TION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

IN THE MAITER OF: ) DOCKET NO,: RCRA-04-2011-4002(b) 
) 

WORLD COLOR (USA) LLC ) 
300 BROWN ROAD ) PROCEEDING UNDER SECTION 
FRANKLIN, KENTVCKY 42134 ) 3008(.) OF THE RESOURCE 

) CONSERVATION AND RECOVERY 
) ACT, 42 U,S,C, § 6928(0) 

EPA ID NO,: KYD 094 203 213 ) 
) 
) 

RESPONDENT ) 
) 

FINALQRDER 

The foregoin! CortseIU Agreement i~ hereby app.roved, ratified and incorporated by 
refetcnce into this Final Order in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing 
the Administrative AsseSiiment a/Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension 
ofPennits, 40 C.ER, Part 22, The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the 
tertn.<; of the foregoing Consent Agreement effective inunediately upon filing of this Consent 
Agreement and Final Order with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Order disposes of this matter 
pursuant to 40 CF,R, §§ 22,18 and 22.3 L 

,,--r!! , 
BEING AGREED, IT IS SO ORDERED this';; day of (l~ ,20.11..

-~,- , 

BY: -.k~ 

Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Regiun 4 



CERTlFlCATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have ulis day filed the original and a true and correct copy of the 
foregoing Con'ent Agreement and the attached Fillal Order (CAH?~ 11;l.t)l,Ma"lli,q(World 
ColqrklJ,SA) LLC, Docket Number: RCRA-()4-201l-4002(h}, on ArK \I '> LU n ._' and 
on ArK \,!J 2011. ,served the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Alfred Politzer (Via EPA Internal Mail) 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
OiTice- of Environmental Accountability 
United States Environmental Protection Agency. Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 ·8909 

Quantindra Smith (Via EPA Internal mail) 
RCRA and OPA Enforcement 

and Compliance Branch 
U,S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street. S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960 

CaroljTI M. Brown, Esq. (Via Certified Mail- Return Receipt Rcque;$ted) 
Grceneb.urn Doll & McDonald PLLC 
300 West Vine Street. Suite 1100 
Lexington. Kentucky 40507 

Date: Lf-fe. -I ( 

Patricia A. Bulloclc. Regional Hearing Clerk 
United States EnvironmentaJ Protection Agency, Region 4 
61 FOl1lyth Street, S,W, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(4()4) 562-9511 


